The Philadelphia Parking Authority
701 Market Street, Suite 5400
Philadelphia, PA 19106

RFP No. 25-08
Job Task Analysis and Test Development

Addendum Three
To: See Email Distribution List
From: Shannon Stewart
Manager of Contract Administration
Date: October 20, 2025
No Pages: 4

This addendum is issued on October 20, 2025, prior to the proposal due date to add, delete, modify, clarify and/or to
respond to questions submitted by eligible Offerors regarding the work included in the above referenced solicitation.

CHANGES TO THE RFP DOCUMENT

1.

Proposal Due Date: The proposal due date has been extended to Wednesday, November 5, 2025 at 1:00 PM.

QUESTIONS

1.

Question: Do appendices, attachments, or sample materials count toward the page limits for each section? For
example, can resumes for Tab C — Key Personnel exceed the 1-2 page limit?

Response: Appendices, attachments, or sample materials are included in the page limits. Resumes can exceed
the 1-2 page limit for Tab C, however, each resume should not exceed 1 page.

Question: | thought | understood that the work under the statement of work Part IV not only included reviewing
the job task identification but also evaluating the screening and selection processes for each one of the jobs as
they currently stand. Is that correct?

Response: Yes, the selected Offeror will have to identify each task, develop or recommend pre-built assessment
tests, evaluate the current selection procedures and consolidate job titles.

Question: If there is an exam to be developed, would that be something that would be priced at the hourly rate
at the time that recommendation is made?

Response: No, Offerors must indicate the cost to develop assessments and if a third party is being used that
cost must be indicated in your proposal.

Question: Regarding termination for convenience, If the Authority terminates the contract on 5 days’ notice, will
vendors be compensated for partially completed work or non-cancelable expenses?

Response: Contractor will be paid any compensation outstanding for the Services satisfactorily performed
pursuant to Section 3 of the Sample Contract for the period prior to the date of termination.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Question: Regarding Right-to-Know Law (RTKL), will applicant test content, scoring keys, and validation reports
be treated as exempt under the trade secret/proprietary exemption? Has the Authority had prior RTKL requests
involving HR or testing materials?

Response: See 65 P.S. §§ 67.101-3104 and Section 8.A. of the Sample Contract. We are unaware of any RTKL
requests involving HR or testing materials within the last three years.

Question: Regarding protection of proprietary work, can vendors label certain deliverables as “confidential” or
“proprietary” to strengthen exemption claims under RTKL, and will the Authority support defending such

designations if challenged?

Response: See 65 P.S. §§ 67.101-3104 and Section 8.A. of the Sample Contract.

Question: Is PPA wanting a standard type, font style and size used for the proposal submission?
Response: Yes, please refer to Part Il of the RFP Document.

Question: Regarding pricing, can we provide pricing per job and phase vs hourly rates?

Response: No, Offerors must complete the Cost Form for the deliverables identified in the Work Statement.
Hourly rates for Key Personnel will be used for any additional job titles added throughout the contract term.
Please see section E of the Work Statement.

Question: What is the reason for issuing this RFP at this time?

Response: The Authority is seeking proposals from highly qualified Offerors to conduct comprehensive job
analyses to assess the job-relatedness of the selection procedures, such as interviews, tests, and physical ability
assessments across approximately 140 union and non-union job titles within our organization.

Question: Once we go through and review all of the different job groups and determine the appropriate selection
pieces for each under Milestone 2, and once we have completed a report of the analysis for each job group, if we
find that one or more job groups require additional screening elements to get the best fit of the KSAOs, will we
then be in a position to offer an amendment to or an addendum to the cost proposal for the design of the
appropriate selection piece, whether it’s a prebuilt tool or something we would construct ourselves? Can we
present an amendment to or an addendum to that cost proposal?

Response: No, all costs associated with each milestone must be included in the milestone payment for each
deliverable.

Question: Regarding Milestone 1, how open is the Authority to physical desk audits and actually putting in an
assessment of what the jobs really do or need for testing? How available are the actual jobs and job titles to the
outside consultant going to be?

Response: Only the job titles in Phase | will be available for a desk audit.

Question: How recent have the job documentation reports been done and do you have a limit such as the last
two years, three years that represents the currency that is most ideal for you?

Response: Job descriptions are reviewed and updated as necessary when a job opening is posted.

Question: Regarding scope of coverage, will all 140 jobs titles need to be analyzed within the first year, or will the
Authority phase the work across multiple years?

Response: The goal is to complete as many milestones as feasible in a year; Milestone | must be finalized within
three to four months of contract execution.

Question: Regarding current assessment tools, for each job title in Appendix D, what are the current assessment
tools (e.g., interviews, written tests, etc.)? Which job titles currently assess physical abilities? How are physical
abilities assessed for these jobs?
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25.

Response: Tests, interviews, equipment assessments and physical assessments are currently utilized. Physical
assessments are conducted by a third-party vendor.

Question: Regarding union involvement, what kind of union involvement should we expect?
Response: The unions will not be involved.

Question: Regarding stakeholder access, what level of access will vendors have to incumbents, supervisors, and
union representatives for interviews, focus groups, and surveys, and will the Authority coordinate those logistics?

Response: The Authority will coordinate these interactions.

Question: Regarding validation approaches, will the Authority have access to employee performance data (e.g.,
ratings, objective performance metrics) or allow for the collection of performance ratings for the purpose of
validating new selection assessments?

Response: No, the Authority is not at liberty to release this information.

Question: Regarding approval timelines, since vendors cannot move to the next milestone without Authority
approval, what is the expected turnaround time for review and approval of deliverables?

Response: The Authority anticipates three to four months per milestone; however, Offerors must include a
Sample Project Schedule in Tab F of their proposal, please see 1I-7 of the RFP document. The Sample Project
Schedule is included in the Criteria for Selection, please see IlI-4 of the RFP document.

Question: Regarding Authority support, will the Authority assign internal staff (e.g., HR or project manager
support) to coordinate scheduling of interviews, focus groups, and surveys?

Response: Yes, the Authority’s project manager will coordinate scheduling.

Question: Regarding milestone dependencies, if delays occur due to Authority approvals or stakeholder
scheduling, will project timelines and milestone dates be adjusted accordingly?

Response: Yes, within reason.

Question: If any new custom tests are necessary, would City, HR or PPA staff be involved as item writers or should
the vendor assume all test authoring responsibilities when preparing the Cost Proposal?

Response: The selected Offeror will be responsible for all test development with the Authority and Human
Resources consultation and approval.

Question: In which milestone should vendors include implementation related tasks and fees (e.g., decision model
determination, cut-scores, test administration and score-retrieval training)?

Response: Milestone Il.

Question: Due to the fact that a hard copy submission is required, will PPA consider extending the deadline two
weeks from the time that answers to vendor questions are posted?

Response: The proposal due date has been extended to Wednesday, November 5, 2025 at 1:00 PM.

Question: What would be the work expected to be completed in the year’s term of the proposal, the jobs in phase
1 or all of the phases?

Response: The goal is to complete as many milestones as feasible in a year; Milestone | must be finalized within
three to four months of contract execution.

Question: Can some of the work be accomplished remotely?

Response: Yes, Offerors must identify in their proposal which services will be performed remotely, if applicable.
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29.

Question: Does the sequencing of the jobs for JTA purposes represent a building process, or does the sequencing
represent a priority for any sense of urgency that needs to be assigned to this part of the overall work effort?

Response: The sequence is based on our frequency of hire & testing within the last three years for each position,
creating a sense of urgency and prioritization for those listed titles in Phase | and so forth.

Question: What are the factors that may drive PPA adding additional jobs to the process? Will sequencing of the
process influence when or how additional jobs may be introduced?

Response: Additional jobs will be the result of any expansion of operation(s), if any. However, any additional
jobs will likely fit into an existing job family and will entail and/or require exact or similar KSAOs and job tasks
of existing job titles.

Question: What are the factors that determine the phase in which job titles are assigned?
Response: Our frequency of hire & testing within the last three years for each position.

Question: Where the consultant’s experience extends beyond the three-year period, with a broader body of high-
quality work in Job Task Analysis and Test/Assessment Design, can that cumulative base of experience be
presented, weighted, and considered in the evaluation for this engagement?

Response: Please see Part Il of the RFP document for the Criteria for Selection.

ADDENDUM THREE



